UNITED NATIONS 2=

_ GENERAL
FECONOMIC E/Cﬁlﬁ?%b.lii&%
AND

20 March 1952
SOCIAL COUNCIL

ORIGINAL: ERGLISH

S ‘ COMMISSION ON HUMAN RIGHTS
SUB-COMMISSION ON FREEDOM OF INFORMATION AND OF THE PRESS
' Fifth session

SUMMARY RECOFD OF THE NINETY-SIXTH MEETING

_ Held at Headquarters, New York,
“* on Monday, 10 March 1952, at 3 p. m.

CONTENTS: ~ .
' . Draft international code of ethics (£/CN,4/Sub.1/151, E/CN.4/Sub.1/151/
Add.1, E/CN,4/Sub,1/L.10, E/CN.k/Sub.1/L.11}) (continued) . . .

7

Chajirman: AZMI Bey (Egypt)
_Ravgg'ogteur: Mr, AZKOUL ‘ '(Lebanon)
Mem‘t‘:erszl Mr. 'BiNDER ' (United States of America) .
Mr. P. H. CHANG (China) B
Mr. GERAUD ' (France). ..
Mr, IOPEZ . "~ (Philippines)
Mr, PIEIC  (Yugoslavia)
.M:. POLLERT CARRIO (Uruguay)
Mr, SILVA CARVALLO (Chile) ,
Mr, WAITHMAN (United Kingdom of Great Britain: and
e : Northern Ireland) o

Mr, ZONOV . (Unian of Soviet Socialist Republics)

523628




O SRR R SN TR R 8 7 . s G a e B R RO AR TR R BT B Ty L

E/CNﬁ.h/Suh'.l/SRV.%
Page 2

Representative of a specialized agency:

Mr. CARNES United Nations Educationsl Scientific and
Cultural Orgenization (UNESCO)

Seeretariat: |
Mes. HUMPHREY Representative of the Secretary-General
Mr. EEK Secretary of the Sub~Commission

DRAFT INTERNATIONAL CODE OF ETHICS (E/CN.M/Sub.1/151, E/CN.%/Sub.1/151/Add.l1,
E/CN.4/Sub.1/L.10, E/CN.4/Sub.1/L.11) (eontinued)

‘ The CHAIRMAN invited the Sub-~Commission to consider document
E/CN.4/Sub,1/L.10, which contained the original text of the draft internstional
eode of ethies and all the amendmants submitted tc it. The Sub-Commission would
vote on the various amendments to article I, taking first the amendments furthest
removed from the original text. Minor defects of style could be disregerded,
since they would be remedied later by a drafting eommittee.

He put to the vote an amendment Ly Mr. Géraud consisting in the
insertion in artigle I, after the words "in cammenting thereon", of the words
"and in describing eontemporary events by the written word, by word of mouth or
by eny other means of expression”.

Thet amendment was adopted by 5 votes to nome, with 6 sbstentions.

‘ The CEAIRMAN put to the vote the propogal of Mr., Chang, Mr. Lopez and
Mr. Géraud to delete the words "and objective” at the end of the first sentence
in artiecle I.

It was decided by 4 votes to 3, with 4 abstentions, to delete thoge

words,

The CHAIRMAN put to the vote an amendment by Mr, Chang snd Mr. Lopez
which applied only to the English text and sonsisted in replacing the vords in the
Tirst sentence, "mske the utmost endesvour"” by "do their utmost”.

The amendment wac adopted by 4 votes to nome, with 7 abstentions.

Mr. BINDER, in reply to a question by Mr. PLEIC, said that the
purpose of his proposal to delete the words "whose veraeity is open to doubt” in
the second gentence was to ensure that all items of information » 8nd not merely
the dubious ones, were cheé.ked. The third sentence of artiele I could be deleted
because it wes repetitious. ,

It wee decided, by 6 votes to b, with one sbotention, to delete the
words "whose vermeity is open to doubt".

/The CHAIRMAN




 BfSHb/mubi1/8R.96
Page 3

macmmumputtothemtem. Ofraud's anm&mnttomdthewraa
"to the hest of their abxlity after the worda “jtems of inrorrmtion in the
second senterce,

The smendment m adoged bx 6 votea to rone, with 5 abetentions.

M, ‘Binder's ;groposa..,. %0 delete the third sen‘bence vas re,jee*ted by
6 votes to ’é, with 2 ebstantions.

Mr, WATTEMAN reealled that his amendment to the third sentence wag to
ingert the word "wilfully" betore the word "distorted", He was prepared to
accept Mr, Lopez's amendment to insertthe word "de :t.iben‘i;ely" belore the word

suppresaed” in the same sentense, so that the two amsndments eouid be put to
the vote together. The mentence would then read: ™Mo fact ghell be wilfully
distorted or essential feet deliberately suppreseed.”

The Joint amendment was adopted by 8 votes to none, with 3 sbotentions.

" The CHAIRMAN stated that, in view of the vote whieh had Jjust been
taken, it was umnecegeary to vote on Mr, Moulik's proposal, which read: 'They
shall not distort facts, or suppress essential facts vhich may lead to
distortion”. T e e
'He directed the Sub-Commiseion's attention to the last sentence of
article I of the Montevideo text. -

Mr, LOPEZ cxpregsed the view that the last sentence should not be
inoluded in the avtiele beceuse it was redundant and proposed thst the
 Sub~Commission vote on that sentenee.,

By 2 votes in favour, 5 egeinst, with b abestentions, the Suvb-Commisgion

decided that the last senterce should not be imeluded in artigle T of the

Montevideo text.

- The CHAYRMAN ealled for & vote on Mi‘. G¢rauvdts proposal for the
edditien of the following sentence at the end of article I: "The foregoing is
a matier of conseienze”,

Mr, Géraud's amendment m re,}ea'bad by b4 votes to 2, with
2 abstentions *

/The CEHAIRMAN




E/CN4/8ub .1/&1‘.9‘6"‘: )
Page 4 o

Tho GZAIRMAN called for s vote on Mr. Moulik's proposal to.transpose
the following sentenece from artiele Il to article I: "Rumour and uneonﬁrmed
news ghall be identified and trested as sueh".

Me, Moulik's: proposal was rejested by L votes to 1, with 6 atgtentions.

_ Tho CHATRMAN stated thet Mr. Moulik hed aleo proposed that article I
should be divided into parta.

Mr. AZKOUL, supported dy Mr. LOPEZ, proposed that discussion of the
presentation of article I suggested by Mr, Moulik should be deferred and
eonsidered in. conjunetion with Mr, Chang’u proposal, which was in the ssme
ca.tegory. : o ‘ ‘

It was o decided. -

““;i"‘The CHAIRMAN put to the vote the following amendad text of a.rt:lele I,
and noted thet the text would be subjest to stylistic ehanges:

"ML engaged in gathering, trancmitting, digceminating snd
eommenting on news and in’ deseribing eontemporary events by the
writton word, by word of mouth or by any other means of expression,

~ chall do their utmost to ensure that the information the publie
raceives is factually scourate. They shall cheek all items of
information to the beat of their ability. No faat ghall be wilfully
vdiatorted o7 esaentia.l faot delibemtely ‘suppresged.,”

A.rtiele I an amended mg adogp_ed ‘bx 6 votes to nope, with 5 absféniions.

. . The CHAIRMAN dvew att.mtion to Mr. Azkoul's proponal for s new urtiele
to be inser‘ced mez a.rtielq T (E/cn.h/s\m.l/l..lo, page 10).

Mr. AZKOUL recalled that at the preceding meeting the Sub-Commission had
rejeeted Mr..Zorov'o proposal stating that the fundamental cbligation of
Journalists vao to combat eggression. and to fight for -dem,ocmtie principles, to
develop friendly relations between pecoples :nd to aonibat diperimination. The
proposal whieh hod been defested constituted a positive injumation upom
Journalisto, vhile the avticle he now p:'opoaed vas ﬁmdamente.‘l.ly different. It
wag a negative gtatement calling upon journalipts to refrsin fyrom eny propegands

/intended




E/cm.h/s:zb.l/sn.%

Page 5 / g

intended to impair filendly relations, provoke threats to tic peace cr
encourage discrimination. The primary obligation of the journalist was to
conform to the principles set forth in article I and the article he now
proposed would be of secondary importance.

It was essential to recognize the iﬁfluential role which media of
information coul@ play in the fate of individuels and of nations, and to
include in a code of ethics en appeal to journalists to refrain from propa-
ganda detrimental to the principles of the United Nations and the cause of
world peace.

In Aanticipation of objections that the cc’> & intended to
regulate the conduct of journalists rather than the coutent of thelr writings,
he stated that subject-matter wes deult with in other articles of the draft
code end that the codes of many groups of journalists included negative
statements of a similar nature. In view of the gravity of the situation, en
exception would be called for, clthough he himself could not look upon his
proposal as an excepticn.

If the code of ethics was to be enforced by governments, he would
never have preposed a text which might provide grounds for restriction of
freedom of information. It was, however, important to remember that the
code was to be a voluntary code, which the individual journalist was free to
follow or dieregard, end that there would be no machinery of any kind to
enforce adherence or impose penalties for violations. The Jjournalist's
primary cbligation would still be to report the truth, but at the same time
the Sub~-Commission should call attention to the importance of exhorting’the
individual not to engage in the types of propaganda enumerated in the new
erticle he now proposed.

Mr. BINDER stated that the negetive fcrm in v* <" Mr. Azkoul had
cocuched his text did not entirely eliminate the ¢ .. culty. The proposal
seemed to conceive of thercurnalist as an indoctrinstor. It raised the
problem of who was to judge whether or not given material constituted

/rropaganda and




E/c 2 /cuh.1/SR.96
Page 6

propaganda and seemed to be predicated upon the existence of a tribunal and
enforcement machinery. Moreover, as past experience had repeatedly shown,
1t was impossible to meke an exhaustive listing in any text,

He would vote against Mr. Azkoul's proposal, but wished to stress
that his negative vote should not be interpreted to mean that he was in
favour of any of the types of propagsnde enumerated in the text. Article I,
- which the Sub-Commission had just adopted, would rule out propaganda per #e.
Moreover, the principies of the United Nations Charter and other international
instruments were applicable to all Member States and to all citizens of those

- states, including journalists.

In view of the divergent conceptions of the role of the newspaper-
man, he was no more zble to support Mr. Azkoul's propossl than that of-
M. Zonow. )

Mr. WAITHMAN expressed sympathy with the objectives sought by
Mr. Azkoul, but felt that the article he proposed would do more harm than
good.‘ While he was in favour of discouraging nevspapermen frem writing
anything likely to provoke threats to the peace, he could not support the

proposal in its present form.

- Mr. LOPEZ commended Mr. Azkoul for his ingenuity, but would be
unable to support the proposal, which bore some resemblances to that of-
Mr. Zonov., His objection was therefore a matter of degree rather than of
kind. v - ,

He could not lend his support to eny attempt to dictate to press
personnel what they were to think or to do on any subject.

. Mr, PLEIC chserved that, although Mr. Bindei had contended that
no one could decide what propaganda was likely to glve rise to the .-
mdesirable effects listed in Mr, Azkoul's amendment; he had sald that he
himself would not countenance such activities. That showed that Mr. Binder
himself had some criteria; surely he could apply thom, |

/Mr. BINDER




L, vivelt/Sub.1/SR.96

;

Page T

Mr. BINDER replied that his own ideas might well differ from those
of others; the reporter and the editor must be glven complete liberty to
choose for themselves what should be published, at least until collective
security and the free flow of information to the peoples had been attained.

Mr. AZKOUL said that he would have wholeheartedly agreed with
Mr. Binder's argument, had the code been intended as a legally binding
instrument to be interpreted by governments;but it was in fact intended as
a code for journalists, to be interpreted by journalists without any government
interference vwhatever. That, indeed, was fhe purpose of the additional
article (E/CN.4/Sub.1/L.10, pege 11) he was proposing for inclusion at the
end of the code. As Mr. Pleic had pointed ouﬁ, Mr. Binder himself had some
criteria about deléterious propaganda. It was to be left to the conscience
‘of the Journalist himself not to infringe the code of ethics. Only &éliberate
warmongers and preachers of discrimination would be affected, and even they
would not be subject to governmental interference. The ¢~z would be violated
only if the provocative activitics were delibers*-. .. proposed new article
was purposely made subject to the provisions of article I, so that the
obligation to abstain from harnful propeganda could not be interpreted as an
obligation to suppress any essential facts.,

Mr, ZOWOV would support Mr. Azkoul's proposal, slthough the wording
and purpose were very different from the positive'proposals he himself had
made previously. It could be assumed that most workers in the press and
information services were honourable persons and could thus be regarded as
on an equal footing with those who were guided by the Universal Declaration
of Human Rights, which also was not a mandatory instrument. The code would
" be a guide and inspiration to the honest Journalist; those who were in
favour of peace and against discrimination could properly decide what
propaganda was likely to impair friendiy relations among nations or to
encourage discrimination. Public opinion was becoming increasingly hostile
to those who favoured asggression and discrimination; the journalist himself
must be increasingly influenced by that trend, and the inclusion of such an
article in his code of ethics would greatly assist him in reflecting public

opinlon,
/Nr. GERAUD




Mr. GERAUD ssked Mr, Askoul whether the prohibition of diszrimination
on grourds of mtiomlity would prevent a Journallst from writing ageinst
German rearmament.

- Mir, AZKOUL explained that he hed used the words in the sense usual iIn
United Nations documsnts and organs, In any cese, it =~ . <he 3ournalist‘
own conscience to declde whether he was deliberately ad.voaating the k“lnd of
cl_isoriznirationnondamned by the Unlted Netions.

The CHAMN epeaking in his parsoml csa.pa.aity, said that ho hacl
opposed Mr, Zonov's amendmenta becauss they had ssamed. o imply some interforence
with the Journalist‘s frea&om., Mr, Azkoul's propose.l however, was
, unexcaptiamﬁle 3 all the eims ho hed émmerated. wors universally accepted , in
perticular the undeaira‘oility of ;diacrvimimtion. Mr. Géraud.’s diaagreémant
with Mr. Azkoul obout diserimination on ground of nationﬁlity was probadly due
to the faet that Mr. Goraud had been thinking in legel terms, wheveas
Mrs Azkoul hed interded tho more usual scsial context, The term used in
Article 2 of the Universal Decleration of Human Rights vas “natienal 5:13;1:1” ’
whish might well be substituted for the word "natiorality”, -

Mres AZKOUL ncoepted that change.

Mr, GERAUD doubted whether that chenge met his objJsction; but he vas
even more dublous whether the prinsiple ought to appesax in 4o wcde of ethiés
at 3110

Mr, LOFEZ &sid that the point raised by Me. Gereud showed how
diffioult 1t was to make o satisfactory emumeration end how muoh 1éewe.;y any list
might give to nisinterpretation. M. Azkoul‘a proposal might prevent the
pu'clie&tion of the views of perscrs who Were in favour of preventive wer; yet
sush views were legitimate neva, Furthermore , 8ome yerfectly henest ,journalistaw
might not belleve in tho purposes and princlples of the United Natiam bu.t
edvocate some cother form of internationsl or@a,nization; augh..viewa ought not
to be suppressed. The plaeing of the raferenoé to the United Natiens Charter

- /at the




E/ON.4/3ub.1/9R.96"
Page 9

at the end of the proposed article was confusing; 1t might imply trat the list
of aims waa exhaustive -= which it csrtainly was not «- or that it asomprised
principles nct embodied in the Charter. In any case, the idea about prometing
frienily rolations betwoen nations was already implicit in the sscord paregraph
of the preamble. Ho could not support M=, Azkoul's ar: " . s,

Mr, PLEIC wsndered whether Mr, Lopez could name any outstanding and
hongst Journalist who did not believe in the purposes and prinoiples of the
United Nations,

Mr. ZONOV cculd not see any reason for exeluding provisions alresdy
embodied in Articles 1 and 2 of the Charter. The Sub-Commission was a
United Naticns organ; thus, 1t ought not to pay any heed to those who did not
subsoribe to the purpcses and principles of the United Nations.

The CHAIRMAN remarked that there was nothing sacrosanet about the
United Netlons Charter. Many people belileved thet parts cf it could “e bettered.
That 31d not, however, imply that they were hostile to the United Nations as such.

Mr, AZKOUL replied that hies empondment would not prevent a Journalist from
reporting the views of those who favoured & preventive war, unless thet were dcne
with the deliherately propagandist intention of impairing friendly relations
emong natlons. That was explicitly guarantesd by “he refc-~ o to the principles
set forth in Article I. While an honest Jourmalist :-..-.. well disagres with
scme provisions of the Charter, he could not possidbly pudblish propagande
deliborately designed to prevent the attainment of the purposes emd prinsiples
of the United Nations. The list was not intonded to be exheustive; 1t was
occmpleted by the general referense to the attainment of the purpesos and
principles of the Orgenization., The argument that the subetanse was already in
the preemdle was fallacious. The proamble dealt only with the principle of
fresdom of information, whereas the ememdment dealt with preventlon of the abuse

of that freedcm,

[Mr. CHANG




7 #
":f ’.‘:.‘ "r‘;v:bov-‘ -.Rl
Page 10

. Mr, CHANG ard Mr., BINDIR ocuggested that Mri Azkoul's amondment: ehould

be ut: to the voite ard that any proposels for changes in the text should dbe
discussed only 1f -1t was adopted. o

Mr, Azkoul's smordment (E/CN.U/Sub, l/L 10, pege 10) was rejected by
6 vetes to 4, with 1 abstention.

The meeting rose at 545 pon.

20/3 a.m.






